

### **REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS**



### ARCHITECTURE, LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURAL AND URBAN DESIGN SERVICES

RFQ NO. 08-24-16-11

PURCHASING DIVISION 4800 WEST COPANS ROAD, COCONUT CREEK, FLORIDA 33063 eBid System: <u>www.coconutcreek.net/purchasing</u>

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION	PAGE
Legal Notice	<ul> <li>Request for QualificationsRFQ</li> </ul>
Part 1 – Gen	eral Information
1.1	Definition – Request for Qualifications (RFQ)1
1.2	Introduction
1.3	Point of Contact1
1.4	Schedule of Events2
Part 2 – Star	ndard Terms and Conditions
2.1	General Terms and Conditions2
2.2	Special Conditions2
2.3	Defined Terms2
2.4	Cone of Silence4
2.5	Public Records
2.6	Addendum6
2.7	Proposal Submission
2.8	RFQ Postponement/Cancellation
2.9	Cost Incurred by Consultants
2.10	Insurance
2.10	Public Entity Crimes
2.12	Legal Requirements
2.12	Assignment
2.13	Venue
2.14	References
2.15	
-	Conflict of Interest
2.17	Officials Not to Benefit
2.18	Collusion
2.19	Anti-Discrimination
2.20	Default9
	ement of Work
3.1	Purpose9
3.2	Minimum Qualifications10
3.3	Licenses
3.4	Scope of Work10
3.5	Standard of Care11
	ructions for Submission of Proposals
4.1	Rules for Submission11
	4.1.1 Transmittal Letter12
	4.1.2 Office Location12
	4.1.3 Organization Profile and Qualifications12
	4.1.4 References12
	4.1.5 Standard Form 330 Architect-Engineer Qualifications13
	4.1.6 Other Information13
4.2	Confidential and/or Proprietary Information13
4.3	Proposals Received from Consultants13
4.4	Modification and Withdrawal of Proposals13

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### SECTION

Part 4 -	- Instructio	ns for Submission of Proposals (cont'd)		
4	4.5 Insu	rance Requirements1		
	4.5.1			
	4.5.2	2 Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions Coverage1	4	
	4.5.3	3 General14	4	
	4.5.4	4 Insurance Company and Agent1	5	
4	4.6 Warı	ranties1		
Part 5 -	- Summary	of Documents to Be Submitted with Proposal1	5	
		n of Submissions and Contract Award		
		eral1		
		ection Procedure1	-	
(		luation Criteria1		
(	6.4 Oral	Oral Presentations (if applicable)16		
(	6.5 Nego	Negotiations17		
(	6.6 Cont	Contract Award17		
(	6.7 Worl	k under the Contract1	7	
(	6.8 Term	n of Contract1	8	
(	6.9 Exte	ension Clause1	8	
(	6.10 Cost	t Adjustments1	8	
Part 7 -	<ul> <li>Visa Cred</li> </ul>	lit Card – Payment Method18	8	
	<b>Required</b>			
		s Qualification Statement23		
(	Consultant's	s Qualification Statement Acknowledgement	6	
	Indemnificat	tion Clause2	7	
	Non-Collusi	ve Affidavit20	8	
	Non-Collusi	ve Affidavit Acknowledgement2	9	
	Drug-Free V	Norkplace Form	0	
	•	ement on Public Entity Crimes3		
		ement on Public Entity Crimes Acknowledgement3		
		· · ·		
Exhibit	S			

Exhibit "A" – List of Disciplines	3	34	4
-----------------------------------	---	----	---



### **CITY OF COCONUT CREEK**

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES KAREN M. BROOKS, DIRECTOR

> 4800 WEST COPANS ROAD COCONUT CREEK, FLORIDA 33063

July 31, 2016

#### LEGAL NOTICE REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS

The City of Coconut Creek, Florida is actively seeking to establish a pool of a maximum of ten (10) qualified Consultants, from a wide range of disciplines, to provide Architecture, Landscape Architectural and Urban Design Services for various City projects. Proposals shall be in full accordance with the scope of services, terms, and conditions contained in this Request for Qualifications (RFQ).

RFQ No.:	08-24-16-11
RFQ Name:	Architecture, Landscape Architectural and Urban Design Services
Pre-Proposal Meeting:	None
Due Date/Time:	Wednesday, August 24, 2016 at 11:00 a.m. EST

A Cone of Silence is in effect with respect to this RFQ. The Cone of Silence prohibits certain communications between potential Respondents and/or Vendors and the City. All communication regarding this RFQ shall be directed to Lorie Messer, Purchasing Analyst at 954-956-1584.

Consultant must be registered on the City's eBid System in order to respond to this RFQ. A complete RFQ document may be downloaded for free from the eBid System as a pdf at <u>www.coconutcreek.net/purchasing</u>. The City is not responsible for the accuracy or completeness of any documentation the Consultant receives from **any source** other than from the eBid System.

Sealed proposals shall be submitted electronically through the eBid System on or before the due date/time stated above. Consultant is solely responsible for downloading all required documents. Responses will be electronically unsealed in a public forum and read aloud. Any proposal received after the date and time specified, whether by mail or otherwise, will not be considered. Any uncertainty regarding the time a proposal is received will be resolved against the Consultant.

Please be advised that City Hall is closed on Fridays and on holidays observed by the City. City Hall hours of operation are 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. EST, Monday through Thursday.

Karen M. Brooks, Director Finance and Administrative Services

Publish Dates: Sunday, July 31, 2016 Sunday, August 7, 2016

#### PART 1 – General Information

#### 1.1 Definition - Request for Qualifications (RFQ)

- 1.1.1 An RFQ is a formal competitive advertised solicitation method that typically describes a project in enough detail to let potential vendors determine if they wish to compete. The RFQ forms the basis for requesting all documents, whether attached or incorporated by reference, utilized for obtaining qualifications and performance data, including but not limited to financial capability, reputation, experience and competency from which the most highly qualified vendor(s) can be identified.
- 1.1.2 The vehicle for securing the consultant shall be in compliance with the State of Florida Competitive Consultants Negotiations Act (CCNA), Florida Statute Section 287.055. Pricing is not submitted as a part of this evaluation process for submitted qualification proposals. Award will be based on the criteria set forth herein to the most qualified firm(s) as indicated by the Statement of Work, herein.

#### 1.2 Introduction

The City of Coconut Creek is soliciting Statements of Qualifications from qualified Consultants with a wide range of disciplines to provide the City with a packet on qualifications and experience. Also, Consultant will participate in public meetings and presentations necessary to accomplish the scope of work.

Respondents to this Request for Qualifications shall be licensed to practice Architecture, Landscape Architectural and Urban Design Services within the State of Florida. Statements submitted with license applications pending shall not be considered responsive.

Interested firms are invited to submit their responses in conformance with the criteria outlined herein.

It is the City's intention to:

- (a) solicit responses from interested parties;
- (b) evaluate the responses;
- (c) conduct oral presentations (if necessary);
- (d) verify the information presented; and
- (e) negotiate and award a contract to the selected Consultants.

The selected Consultants must agree to abide by and be governed by all Federal, State, County and City laws, rules, and regulations, some of which may have a bearing on the services involved in any Agreements issued as a result of this RFQ.

#### **1.3 Point of Contact**

To ensure fair consideration for all Consultants, the City prohibits communication to or with any department, elected official or employee during the submission process, other than the Purchasing Analyst, regarding the requirements for this submittal. Any such contact may be considered grounds for disqualification. The City shall not be responsible for oral interpretations given by any City employee or its representative.

All inquiries concerning clarifications of this solicitation or for additional information shall be submitted in writing by mail, email, or facsimile and directed as follows:

City of Coconut Creek – Purchasing Division Attn: Lorie Messer, Purchasing Analyst 4800 West Copans Road Coconut Creek, Florida 33063 Fax: (954) 973-6754 Email: Imesser@coconutcreek.net

All responses to questions/clarifications will be sent to all prospective Consultants in the form of an addendum. Such contact is to be for clarification purposes only. Material changes, if any, to the scope of services, or bid procedures will only be transmitted electronically through the eBid System.

#### 1.4 Schedule of Events

The City will use the following tentative time schedule in the selection process. The City reserves the right to change and/or delay scheduled dates.

Event	Date
RFQ Available	07/31/2016
Non-Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting	None
Last Date of Receipt of Questions	08/08/2016
Addendum Release (if required)	08/11/2016
Proposals Due (11:00 a.m. EST)	08/24/2016
Proposal Review for Compliance	08/24/2016 - 08/31/2016
Selection Committee Review/Short List Completed	09/07/2016
Presentations to Selection Committee (if determined necessary)	09/19/2016 - 09/21/2016
Negotiations Complete/Finalize Documents	09/22/2016
Commission Award of Contract	10/27/2016

#### PART 2 – General Terms and Conditions

#### 2.1 General Terms and Conditions

These General Terms and Conditions apply to offers made to the City of Coconut Creek by all prospective Proposers. Any and all special conditions in this RFQ or any sample agreement document that may be in variance or conflict with these General Terms and Conditions shall have precedence over these General Terms and Conditions. If no changes or deletions to the General Terms and Conditions are made in the Special Conditions, then the General Terms and Conditions shall prevail in their entirety.

#### 2.2 Special Conditions

Where there appears to be variances or conflicts between the General Terms and Conditions and any Special Conditions and/or the Statement of Work outlined in this proposal, the Special Conditions and/or the Statement of Work shall prevail.

#### 2.3 Defined Terms

City: Shall mean the City of Coconut Creek, a political subdivision of the State of Florida.

**Cone of Silence:** Means a prohibition on any communications between a potential officer, bidder, lobbyist, Consultant, to a City Commissioner, City Attorney, the City Manager, and all City employees (except the Procurement Analyst), and any non-employees appointed to evaluate or recommend selection in such procurement process regarding a particular Request

for Proposals (RFP), Request for Qualifications (RFQ), Invitation for Bids (IFB), or any other advertised solicitation from the time a solicitation is advertised to contract award recommendation and does not include written communications on file with the City Clerk.

**Consultant:** Successful Bidder or Proposer who is awarded a contract to provide professional services to the City.

**Contract:** A deliberate verbal or written agreement between two (2) or more competent parties to perform or not to perform a certain act or acts, including all types of agreements, regardless of what they may be called, for the procurement or disposal of equipment, materials, supplies, services or construction. Contract shall be inclusive of the term "Agreement" unless stated otherwise.

**Contract Administrator:** An individual responsible for the management of all actions required for initiating and issuing procurements, along with all contract-related actions performed during the course of the work from award until closeout of the contract.

**Evaluation Criteria:** Factors relating to management capability, technical capability, meeting performance requirements, price and other important considerations used to evaluate which proposer has made the most advantageous offer in a competitive solicitation.

**Firm:** The individual(s) or firm(s) to whom the award is made and who executes the contract documents.

**First Ranked Proposer:** That Proposer, responding to a City RFQ, whose proposal is deemed by the City, the most advantageous to the City after applying the evaluation criteria contained in the RFQ.

**Offeror:** Means a person submitting an offer in response to a Request for Qualifications or other solicitation.

**Professional Services:** Services within the scope of the practice of architecture, professional engineering, landscape architecture, or registered surveying and mapping, as defined by the laws of the state, or those performed by any architect, professional engineer, landscape architect, or registered surveyor and mapper in connection with his or her professional employment or practice.

**Proposal:** An offer made by one party to another as a basis for negotiations for entering into a contract. A proposal received in response to an RFP.

**Proposer:** One who submits a proposal in response to a solicitation. The terms "Consultant" and "Proposer" are used interchangeably and have the same meaning.

**Selection Committee:** A group of at least three (3) reviewers comprised of qualified City staff or other persons selected by the City who aid in the evaluation of the proposals.

**Successful Consultant:** Consultant who is awarded a contract to provide professional services to the City.

Waiver of Mistake or Informality: The act of disregarding errors or technical nonconformities in proposals which do not change the substance of the proposal and will not adversely affect the competition between proposers.

#### 2.4 Cone of Silence

- 2.4.1 "Cone of Silence" means a prohibition on any communication regarding a particular Request for Proposals (RFP), Request for Qualifications (RFQ), Invitation for Bid (IFB), or other competitive solicitation between:
  - (a) Any person who seeks an award therefrom, including a potential vendor or vendor's representative, and
  - (b) The City Commission, City Attorney, City Manager, and all City employees, and any non-employees appointed to evaluate or recommend selection in such procurement process.

The Cone of Silence shall not apply to communications with the Procurement Official to obtain clarification or information concerning the subject solicitation. Any such contact with anyone other than the Procurement Official may be considered grounds for disqualification. The City shall not be responsible for oral interpretations given by any City employee or its representative. For purposes of this section, "vendor's representative" means an employee, partner, director, or officer of a potential vendor, or Consultant, lobbyist, or actual or potential subcontractor or subconsultant of a vendor, or any other individual acting through or on behalf of any person seeking an award.

- 2.4.2 The Cone of Silence shall be applicable to each RFP, RFQ, IFB, or other competitive solicitation during the solicitation and review of responses. At the time of issuance of the solicitation, the Procurement Official shall include in any advertisement and public solicitation for goods and services a statement disclosing the requirements of this section.
- 2.4.3 The Cone of Silence shall terminate at the time the City awards or approves a contract, votes to reject all bids or responses, or otherwise takes action which ends the solicitation and review process.
- 2.4.4 Nothing contained herein shall prohibit any potential vendor or vendor's representative from:
  - (a) Making public presentations at duly noticed pre-bid conferences or at meetings before a duly noticed Selection Committee;
  - (b) Communicating with the City Commission during any duly noticed public meeting;
  - (c) Communicating verbally or in writing with any City employee or official for the limited purpose of seeking clarification or additional information, when such employee is specifically designated in the applicable RFP, RFQ, IFB, or other competitive solicitation documents;
  - (d) Communicating in writing with the Procurement Official or other staff person specifically designated in the procurement document.

The potential vendor or vendor's representative shall deliver a copy of any such written communication to the Office of the City Clerk, who shall make copies available to the public upon request. The written communication shall include a reference to the RFP, RFQ, IFB, or other competitive bid document number.

2.4.5 Any violation of this rule shall be investigated by the Procurement Official and the City Attorney's Office and/or the City Manager's Office and may result in any

recommendation for award, or any RFP award, or IFB award to said potential vendor or vendor's representative being deemed void or voidable. The potential vendor or vendor's representative determined to have violated this rule, shall be subject to debarment. In addition, to any other penalty provided by law, violation of this rule by a City employee shall subject the employee to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

#### 2.5 Public Records

Consultant shall keep such records and accounts and require any and all Consultants and subconsultants to keep records and accounts as may be necessary in order to record complete and correct entries as to personnel hours charged to the project and any expenses for which Consultant expects to be reimbursed. Such books and records will be available at all reasonable times for examination and audit by City and shall be kept for a period of three (3) years after the completion of all work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. Incomplete or incorrect entries in such books and records will be grounds for City's disallowance of any fees or expenses based upon such entries.

City is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. To the extent Consultant is a Consultant acting on behalf of the City pursuant to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, Consultant shall comply with all public records laws in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statute. In accordance with state law, Consultant agrees to:

- a) Keep and maintain all records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the City in order to perform the services.
- b) Upon request from the City's custodian of public records, provide the City with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copies within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the costs provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statute, or as otherwise provided by law.
- c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Agreement term and following completion of the contract if the Consultant does not transfer the records to the City.
- d) Upon completion of the services within this Agreement, at no cost, either transfer to the City all public records in possession of the Consultant or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the services. If the Consultant transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the services, the Consultant shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the Consultant keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the services, the Consultant shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City.
- e) IF THE CONSULTANT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLA. STAT., TO THE VENDOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CITY'S CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (954) 973-6774, <u>PublicRecords@coconutcreek.net</u>, 4800 West Copans Road, Coconut Creek, FL 33063.

If Consultant does not comply with this Section, the City shall enforce the Agreement provisions in accordance herewith and may unilaterally cancel this Agreement in accordance with state law.

#### 2.6 Addendum

If the Consultant should be in doubt as to the meaning of any of the RFQ document, or is of the opinion that the scope of services contains errors, contradictions or reflect omissions, Consultant shall submit a written request directed to the Purchasing Analyst to be forwarded to the appropriate person or department for interpretations or clarification. Interpretations or clarifications deemed necessary by the Purchasing Analyst in response to such questions will be issued on official addendum.

The issuance of any addendum shall be issued through the eBid System to all Consultants registered for this RFQ. The addendum is the only official method whereby interpretation, clarification, changes or additional information can be given. It is the Consultant's responsibility to check the eBid System prior to the due date and time to ensure that the Consultant has a complete, up-to-date package.

#### 2.7. Proposal Submission

- 2.7.1 Consultant shall use the electronic eBid System to submit a response. The proposal shall be signed by a representative who is authorized to contractually bind the Consultant. Consultant shall upload the response as one (1) file to the eBid System. The maximum file size is 25MB, however, that maximum applies to each file, not the Proposal itself. You are allowed an unlimited number of attachments with the 25MB being the maximum file size.
- 2.7.2 Consultant's response shall not contain any alteration to the document posted other than entering data in spaces provided or including attachments as necessary. By submission of a response, Consultant affirms that a complete set of bid documents was obtained from the eBid System or from the Purchasing Division only and no alteration of any kind has been made to the solicitation.
- 2.7.3 All blanks on the proposal form(s) must be completed and notarized if applicable. Names must be typed or printed below the signature. Facsimile proposals will not be accepted.
- 2.7.4 Each Consultant for services further represents that the Consultant has examined and is familiar with the local conditions under which the work is to be done and has correlated the observations with the requirements of the contract documents.
- 2.7.5 Only one (1) proposal from any individual, firm, partnership, or corporation, under the same or different names, will be considered. Should it appear to the City that any Consultant is interested in more than one (1) proposal for work contemplated, all proposals in which such a Consultant is interested will be rejected. Consultant by submitting this proposal certifies that the proposal is made without previous understanding, agreement or connection with any person, firm or corporation making a proposal for the same material, supplies, equipment or services and is in all respects, fair and without collusion or fraud.
- 2.7.6 Each Consultant by signature and by submission of a response, represents that the Consultant has read and understands the contract documents, has completed all required fields and the proposal has been made in accordance therewith.

- 2.7.7 The submittal of a proposal by a Consultant will be considered by the City as constituting an offer by the Consultant to perform the required services at the stated prices.
- 2.7.8 All proposals received from Consultants in response to this Request for Qualifications will become the property of City and will not be returned to the Consultants. In the event of Contract award, all documentation produced as part of the Contract shall become the exclusive property of the City.
- 2.7.9 As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to reject any and all proposals or waive any minor irregularity or technicality in proposals received. The City will determine which Consultants are "responsible and responsive".

#### 2.8 **RFQ Postponement/Cancellation**

The City may, at its sole and absolute discretion, reject any and all, or parts of any and all proposals; re-advertise this RFQ; postpone or cancel, at any time, this RFQ process; or waive any irregularities in this RFQ or in the proposals received as a result of this RFQ.

#### 2.9 Costs Incurred by Consultants

All expenses involved with the preparation/and or presentation and submission of proposals to the City, or any work performed in connection therewith, shall be the sole responsibility of the Consultant(s) and shall not be reimbursed by the City.

#### 2.10 Insurance

The respondent, if awarded a contract, shall maintain insurance coverage reflecting the minimum amounts and conditions as required by the City.

#### 2.11 Public Entity Crimes

Pursuant to Paragraph 2(a) of Section 287.133, *Florida Statutes*, a person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a proposal for a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a proposal on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit proposals on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and, may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 for Category TWO (\$10,000) for a period of thirty-six (36) months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

#### 2.12 Legal Requirements

The Consultant shall observe and comply with all federal, state, county laws and local ordinances, rules and regulations that apply to this Contract. Failure to familiarize himself/herself with applicable laws will in no way relieve him/her from responsibility.

#### 2.13 Assignment

Neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract or subcontract as a whole without the written consent of the other, nor shall the Consultant assign any monies due or to become due to him or her, without the previous written consent of the Contract Administrator.

#### 2.14 Venue

The parties waive the privilege of venue and agree that all litigation between them in the state courts shall take place exclusively in Broward County, Florida and that all litigation between

them in the federal courts shall take place exclusively in the Southern District in and for the State of Florida.

#### 2.15 References

As part of the proposal evaluation process, the City may conduct an investigation of references, including a record check or consumer affairs complaints. Consultant's submission of a proposal constitutes acknowledgment of the process and consent to investigate. The City is the sole judge in determining Consultants qualifications.

#### 2.16 Conflict of Interest

The award of any contract hereunder is subject to the provisions of Chapter 112, *Florida Statutes*. Consultants must disclose with their proposal the name of any officer, director, partner, proprietor, associate or agent who is also an officer or employee of the City or any of its agencies. Further, all Consultants must disclose the name of any officer or employee of the City who owns, directly or indirectly, an interest of five percent (5%) or more in the Consultant's firm or any of its branches or affiliate companies.

#### 2.17 Officials Not to Benefit

Each Consultant shall certify, upon signing a proposal, that to the best of their knowledge, no City of Coconut Creek official or employee having official responsibility for the procurement transaction, or member of his or her immediate family, has received or will receive any financial benefit relating to the award of this Agreement. If such a benefit has been received or will be received, this fact shall be disclosed with the proposal or as soon thereafter as it appears that such a benefit will be received. Failure to disclose the information prescribed above may result in suspension, debarment, or rescission of the Agreement made, or could affect payment pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.

#### 2.18 Collusion

The Consultant certifies that its proposal is made without previous understanding, agreement, or connection either with any previous firms or corporations offering a proposal for the same items, or with the City. The Consultant also certifies that its proposal is in all respects fair, without outside control, collusion, fraud, or otherwise illegal action.

#### 2.19 Anti-Discrimination

That Consultant shall for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interests, assigns, subcontractors, and sub-lessees, as a part of the consideration hereof, hereby covenant and agree that:

- a) No person on the ground of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status, political affiliation, familial status, disability, sexual orientation, pregnancy, or gender identity or expression shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of or performance of services described herein; and
- b) Consultant, its personal representatives, successors in interests, assigns, subcontractors, and sub-lessees shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment to be employed in the performance of this Agreement with respect to hiring, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of employment, or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status, political affiliation, familial status, disability, sexual orientation, pregnancy, or gender identity or expression.

That in the event of a proven breach of the above non-discrimination covenant, the City shall have the right to terminate the Agreement as if this Agreement had never been made.

#### 2.20 Default

#### **Termination for Cause**

In the event the Consultant shall default in or violate any of the terms, obligations, restrictions or conditions of this Contract, the City may, upon written notice to the Consultant, terminate this Contract effective immediately. In the event of such termination the City may hold the Consultant liable for any and all damages sustained by the City arising out of such default, including but not limited to costs of reprocurement and cover.

#### Termination for Default

In the event the Consultant shall default in any of the terms, obligations, restrictions or conditions in the Contract Documents, the City shall give the Consultant written notice by registered, certified mail of the default and that such default shall be corrected or actions taken to correct such default shall be commenced within three (3) calendar days thereof. In the event the Consultant has failed to correct the conditions(s) of the default or the default is not remedied to the satisfaction and approval of the City, the City shall have all legal remedies available to it, including, but not limited to termination of the Contract in which case the Consultant shall be liable for any and all damages permitted by law arising from the default and breach of the Contract.

#### **Termination for Convenience of City**

Upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the Consultant, the City may without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, terminate the Contract for the City's convenience whenever the City determines that such termination is in the best interest of the City. Where the Contract is terminated for the convenience of the City the notice of termination to the Consultant must state that the Contract is being terminated for the convenience of the City under the termination clause and the extent of termination. The Consultant shall discontinue all work on the appointed last day of service.

#### PART 3 – STATEMENT OF WORK

#### 3.1 Purpose

The City of Coconut Creek is seeking to establish a pool of a maximum of ten (10) highly qualified Consultants, from a wide range of disciplines, to provide Architecture, Landscape Architectural and Urban Design Services for various City projects.

Awarded Consultants shall provide Architecture, Landscape Architectural and Urban Design Services for projects in which the estimated construction cost for each individual project under the Agreement does not exceed \$2 million, or for study activity if the fee for professional services for each individual study does not exceed \$200,000.00, or for work of a specified nature as outlined in the Agreement required by the agency, and as prescribed in Florida Statutes, Chapter 287, Section 287.055(g) as may be amended from time to time. Firms providing professional services under continuing contracts shall not be required to bid against one another.

Awarded Consultants shall be chosen for individual projects based on the Consultant's qualifications and what is in the best interest of the City.

#### 3.2 Minimum Qualifications

The required technical staff of the Consultant shall have a minimum of five (5) years of verifiable experience in Architecture, Landscape Architectural and Urban Design Services. Consultant shall demonstrate significant knowledge of current trends and be able to provide visual samples of completed projects that showcase the firm's ability to complete this project.

#### 3.3 Licenses

Consultants must be appropriately licensed and registered in the State of Florida and shall maintain such license throughout the term of the resultant contract.

#### 3.4 Scope of Work

3.4.1 The scope of services shall include, but are not necessarily limited to the following disciplines:

Building Design	Plan Review	
Construction Management / Administration / Engineering Inspection (CEI)	Public Involvement	
Cost Benefit Analysis	Process Evaluation	
Cost Estimates	Renovations	
Drafting of Codes, Standards and Ordinances	Street Graphics and Wayfinding	
Environmental Analysis	Streetscape Design	
Geotechnical Engineering	Sustainable Design	
Hardscape Design	Transportation / Traffic Engineering	
Irrigation Design	Water Resources	
Land Surveying	Mechanical / Electrical / Plumbing (MEP) Engineering	
Lighting Designs / Plans	Interior Design	

- 3.4.2. The selected Consultants may be required to investigate, analyze, evaluate, report, coordinate, prepare plans, specifications and contract documents, bid/award and evaluation and services during construction, perform landscape architectural services, perform program development, schematic design, construction documents, etcetera for any of the aforementioned disciplines, related matters, as well as any other landscape architectural assignments upon the request of the City. The City may require based upon the firm's evaluation to identify needs, develop and improve programs, establish cost effective priorities for making improvements and develop a short-term or a long-range program for implementation on request.
- 3.4.3 The selected Consultants may be required to utilize the services of a Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) Accredited Professional, whether the LEED Accredited Professional is an employee of the firm or the firm has direct access to a LEED Accredited Professional.
- 3.4.4. The selected Consultants may be required to represent the City of Coconut Creek in matters involving or relating to other governmental entities at the local, regional, state or national level, pertaining to the County/State/Federal for any improvement programs, permits or grants in which the City is or may be an eligible participant or has an interest.

- 3.4.5. Some of the projects requiring professional landscape architecture and urban design services will be funded through the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), or other federal and state granting authorities. All federal and state regulations pertaining to any grant related project shall apply.
- 3.4.6. Architecture, Architectural and Urban Design Services could include, but not be limited to, approved capital improvement projects as outlined in the City's budget.
- 3.4.7. Tentative task assignments may include, but are not limited to the following:
  - Design of Greenways and Linear Parks
  - Design of Complete Street Improvement Projects
  - Design of Streetscapes including construction plans for landscape and irrigation
  - Development of public information signage
  - Development of urban design guidelines
  - Graphic design and development of thematic streetscape concepts
  - Roadside buffer landscape design
  - Planning and urban design including all that is related to the design of master plans.

This item may include construction plans for elements of projects proposed as part of the town center planning process.

#### 3.5 Standard of Care

Consultant shall perform all of the provisions of this contract with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under the same or similar circumstances. The City shall base its determination of the Consultant's fulfillment of the scope of work in accordance with accepted professional consulting standards.

Consultant shall be responsible for the accuracy of its professional services under this Agreement and shall promptly make revisions or corrections resulting from its errors, omissions, or negligent acts without additional compensation. The City's acceptance of any of Consultant's professional services shall not relieve Consultant of its responsibility to subsequently correct any such errors or omissions.

Consultant shall respond to the City's notice of any errors and/or omissions within twenty-four (24) hours of written confirmation by the Consultant of the City's notice. Such confirmation may be in the form of a facsimile confirmation receipt by the City, or by actual hand delivery of written notice by the City to the Consultant. Consultant shall be required to visit the Project site if directed by the City.

#### PART 4 – SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS

#### 4.1 Rules for Submission

The submission must name all persons or entities interested in the submission as principals. The proposal must declare that it is made without collusion with any other person, or entity, submitting a proposal pursuant to the RFQ.

The proposal shall be written in sufficient detail to permit the City to conduct a meaningful evaluation of the proposed services. Each page should be titled as described below, i.e. *work plan, key personnel* etc. and inserted with its specific "Tab". The statement of qualifications shall respond to each item outlined below. Please limit response to the information requested. The proposal must include the following information:

# Note: The proposal shall be signed by a representative who is authorized to contractually bind the Consultant.

#### 4.1.1 Transmittal Letter

This letter shall be a two (2) page single sided document and shall summarize in a brief and concise statement, the respondent's qualifications. The letter shall provide the name, title, address, email, telephone and fax number of the official corporate contact, and an alternate. An official authorized to negotiate for the respondent must sign the letter of transmittal.

#### 4.1.2 Office Location

The location of the office where the work will be prepared, and the key personnel in that office. The consultant may identify all of their offices, but the location of the main office responsible for the actual production of the work and key personnel in that office must be identified.

#### 4.1.3 Organization Profile and Qualifications

This section of the proposal must describe the respondent, including the size of the office responsible for the work activities. The respondent shall provide the City with the resumes of all key personnel who will actually be assigned to perform the work. The respondent must supply all proper Florida business license(s). In addition, the respondent must supply the following information:

- Type of organization (i.e. individual, partnership, corporation, joint venture, etc.) and year established.
- Principals of firm and core values.
- Person in charge of this project and diagram of proposed organizational structure.
- State if your firm is a minority business as defined by the Florida Small and Minority Business Assistance Act.

#### 4.1.4 References

This section of the submission must include a list of all projects completed of similar work listed in Part 3 – Statement of Work that the responsible offices, or employees, have completed within the last five (5) years. The list must include:

- A brief description of the project.
- Total final cost of the project.
- Owner of the project.
- The name and telephone number of a contact person.
- The date the project was completed.

## Note: A separate reference document is not required, if the reference information requested above is listed in Standard Form 330.

#### 4.1.5 Standard Form 330 Architect-Engineer Qualifications

Submit Standard Form 330 (Part 1 and Part 2) as part of your response.

#### 4.1.6 Other Information

This section shall be for other information the respondent wishes to include, but is not limited to:

- The successful respondent will provide evidence of liability insurance as a condition of the contract.
- Any other information respondent feels is appropriate to assist in selection.

#### 4.2 Confidential and/or Proprietary Information

In accordance with Florida Statutes, Chapter 119.07(1)(a) and except as may be provided by other applicable state and federal law, the Request for Qualifications and the responses thereto are in the public domain. However, Proposers are requested to specifically identify in the submitted proposal any financial information considered confidential and/or proprietary which may be considered exempt under Florida Statute, Section 119.071.

#### 4.3 **Proposals Received from Consultants**

All proposals received from Consultants in response to the Request for Qualifications will become the property of City and will not be returned. In the event of contract award, all documentation produced as part of the contract shall become the exclusive property of City.

#### 4.4 Modification and Withdrawal of Proposals

- 4.4.1 Proposals may be modified or withdrawn prior to the due date for submitting electronic proposals. Proposals may be retracted from the eBid System. Retracting a response allows the Consultant to change all or part of the response that was previously submitted. Retracting a response **does not** delete the response currently entered; however, by retracting your response, it is no longer submitted. You must click "Submit Response" on the Response Submission Tab for your retracted bid to be submitted again.
- 4.4.2 Withdrawal of a proposal will not prejudice the rights of a Consultant to submit a new proposal prior to the proposal opening date and time. No proposal may be withdrawn or modified after the date of proposal opening has passed.
- 4.4.3 If within twenty-four (24) hours after proposals are opened, and Consultant files a duly signed, written notice with the Purchasing Office, and within five (5) calendar days thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of City, by clear and convincing evidence, that there was a material and substantial mistake in the preparation of its proposal, or that the mistake is clearly evident on the face of the proposal, but the intended correct proposal is not similarly evident, Consultant may withdraw its proposal and any bid security will be returned, if applicable.

#### 4.5 Insurance Requirements

Throughout the term of this Contract, Successful Consultant and/or any and all subconsultants or anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them shall maintain in force at their own expense, insurance as follows:

#### 4.5.1 General Liability

Commercial General Liability insurance with limits not less than \$1,000,000.00 each occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage including

coverage for premises/operations, contractual liability, personal injury, explosion, collapse, underground hazard, products/completed operations, broad form property damage, cross liability and severability of interest clause. This policy of insurance shall be written in an "occurrence" based format.

#### 4.5.2 Professional Liability / Errors and Omissions Coverage

If the Bidder is to provide professional services under this Agreement, the Bidder must provide the City with evidence of Professional Liability insurance with, at a minimum of \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence and in the aggregate. "Claims-Made" forms are acceptable for Professional Liability insurance. Coverage shall include all claims arising out of the Consultant's operations or premises, any person directly or indirectly employed by the Consultant, and the Consultant's obligations under indemnification under this contract.

Consultant acknowledges that the City is relying on the competence of the Consultant to design the project to meet its functional intent. If it is determined during construction of the project that changes must be made due to Consultant's negligent errors and omissions, Consultant shall promptly rectify them and shall be responsible for additional costs, if any, of the project to the proportional extent caused by such negligent errors or omissions at no cost to the City.

#### 4.5.3 General

Should any of the required insurance be provided under a form of coverage that includes a general annual aggregate limit and provides that claims investigation or legal defense costs be included in such general annual aggregate limit, such general annual aggregate limit shall be double the occurrence limits specified above.

Should any required insurance lapse during the Contract term, requests for payments originating after such lapse shall not be processed until the City receives satisfactory evidence of reinstated coverage as required by this Contract, effective as of the lapse date. If insurance is not reinstated, City may, at its sole option terminate this Agreement effective on the date of such lapse of insurance.

Auto Liability and General Liability policies shall be endorsed to provide the following:

- a) Name as Additional Insured the City of Coconut Creek and its Officers, Agents, Employees and Commission Members.
- b) That such insurance is primary to any other insurance available to the additional insured with respect to claims covered under the policy and that insurance applies separately to each insured against whom claims are made or suit is brought, but the inclusion of more than one insured shall not operate to increase the insurer's limit of liability.

All policies shall be endorsed to provide sixty (60) days prior written notice of cancellation, non-renewal or reduction in coverage or limits to:

City of Coconut Creek 4800 West Copans Road Coconut Creek, Florida 33063

The issuing agency shall include full name, address and telephone number in each insurance certificate issued.

Certificates of Insurance, in form and evidencing all required insurance and endorsements, shall be submitted with the Consultant's Proposal Package through the eBid System. If Consultant is Successful Consultant, then prior to commencement of Contract, Consultant must submit a revised Certificate of Insurance naming the City of Coconut Creek as Additional Insured for all liability policies.

#### 4.5.4 Insurance Company and Agent

All insurance policies herein required of the Successful Consultant shall be written by a company with a A.M. Best rating of A-VII or better that is duly authorized and licensed to do business in the State of Florida and shall be executed by agents, thereof that are duly licensed as agents in said state.

A copy of **any** current Certificate of Insurance should be included with your proposal.

#### 4.6 Warranties

- 4.6.1 Successful Consultant warrants to City that is not insolvent, it is not in bankruptcy proceedings or receivership, nor is it engaged in or threatened with any litigation, arbitration or other legal or administrative proceedings or investigations of any kind which would have an adverse effect on its ability to perform its obligations under the contract.
- 4.6.2 All warranties made by Successful Consultant together with service warranties and guarantees shall run to City and the successors and assigns of City.

#### PART 5 – SUMMARY OF DOCUMENTS TO BE SUBMITTED WITH PROPOSAL

- **5.1.** The following documents are to be executed, notarized (if applicable), and submitted as a condition to this Request for Qualifications:
  - a) Completed Standard Form 330 (Part 1 and Part 2) Architecture-Engineer Qualifications
  - b) Certificate of Insurance
  - c) Licenses (Including Business Tax Receipt)
  - d) Consultant's Qualification Statement
  - e) Acknowledgement of Consultant's Qualification Statement
  - f) Indemnification Clause
  - g) Non-Collusive Affidavit
  - h) Drug-Free Workplace Form
  - i) Sworn Statement on Public Entity Crimes
  - j) Exhibit "A" List of Disciplines

#### PART 6 – EVALUATION OF SUBMISSIONS AND CONTRACT AWARD

#### 6.1 General

The City shall be the sole judge of its own best interest, the submission and the resulting negotiated agreement. In all instances, the City's decision will be final.

Due to the complexity of the projects, verifiable experience in Architecture, Landscape Architectural and Urban Design Services is an essential criterion for selection. As part of the package, firms are asked to submit statements of qualifications, experience, and references of other projects that have involved their respective firms.

The respondent understands that this RFQ does not constitute an agreement or a contract with the City. An official contract, or Agreement, is not binding until the submission is reviewed and accepted by the City Commission and by all parties.

A standard City of Coconut Creek Consultant Contract Agreement will form the basis of the contract between the successful Consultants and the City. Consultant's additional terms and conditions may be added to the Agreement.

#### 6.2 Selection Procedure

All Statements of Qualifications received by the specified deadline will be reviewed by the Selection Committee for content, completeness, qualifications, and experience. After those firms deemed the most qualified are selected, further evaluation and interviews of the selected firms may be conducted as part of the final selection process. However, the City of Coconut Creek reserves the right to complete the selection process without proceeding to an interview phase, and may choose to select Consultants based upon the information supplied in the Statement of Qualifications. The City of Coconut Creek reserves the right to waive any informality in any submittal and to reject any or all submittals.

#### 6.3 Evaluation Criteria

Following the opening of the qualification submissions, the Selection Committee, comprised of qualified City staff or other persons selected by the City, will evaluate the submittals and rank them in the order of the most responsive Consultant. Proposals will be evaluated and ranked in accordance with the criteria listed below:

Criteria	a
1.	Qualifications of the firm and key staff
	Area of expertise
	Adequacy of personnel
	Stability of key staff
2.	Minority Representation
	• Firm is a Certified minority business as defined by the Florida Small and Minority
	Business Assistance Act
3.	Past performance
	Customer satisfaction references
	Previous experience with governmental agencies
4.	Ability to meet time and budget requirements
5.	Location of the Firm
	Office in reasonable proximity to Coconut Creek (Tri-County area preferred)
6.	Experience and Technical Capabilities
	Current and projected workload
	Firm demonstrates consistency meeting project time and budget constraints
	Demonstrated minimization of change orders/amendments
7.	Volume of work previously awarded to each firm by the City

#### 6.4 Oral Presentations (if applicable)

The City may require the top short-listed Consultants to give oral presentations in support of their proposals or to exhibit or otherwise demonstrate the information contained therein prior to a recommendation being presented to the City Commission. Should the City require such oral presentation, the Consultant will be notified seven (7) days in advance.

#### 6.5 Negotiations

After the Selection Committee ranks the firms, the Purchasing Analyst will request, accept and consider proposals for the compensation to be paid under the contract during competitive negotiations with the top ten (10) ranked firms. Staff will present the results of the negotiations to the City Commission with its recommendation. If the City Commission determines that staff is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the firms considered to be the most qualified at a price the City determines to be fair, competitive and reasonable, then negotiations with that firm, or firms, shall be formally terminated. Should the City be unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the selected firms, the City may select additional firm(s) in order of their competence and qualifications, and continue negotiations until an agreement is reached with the additional firm(s). However, the City reserves the right to reject all qualifications, waive any irregularities and solicit and re-advertise for other qualifications.

#### 6.6 Contract Award

- 6.6.1 Through the CCNA process, the City wishes to identify all firms interested in this project and then shorten that list of interested firms down to ten (10) highly qualified Consultants. This RFQ is intended as the means to identify these highly qualified Consultants. The City of Coconut Creek anticipates entering into a contract for specific projects with the respondents who submits the qualifications judged by the City to be the most advantageous to the City.
- 6.6.2 Responses will be electronically unsealed in a public forum and read aloud. A Selection Committee will evaluate the proposals based on the criteria stated herein. The City is the sole judge in evaluation considerations. It is the City's intent to award the contract to ten (10) Consultants; however, the City reserves the right to award to less than ten Consultants if the City deems it is in its best interest.
- 6.6.3 The Contract will be awarded only to responsible and responsive Consultants licensed and qualified by experience to do the work specified. The Consultants shall submit, prior to award of Contract, satisfactory evidence of his/her experience in like work and that he/she is fully prepared with the necessary organization, capital, and equipment to complete the scope of work. Consultants shall be insured, licensed, and certified by all applicable local, county, and state agencies.
- 6.6.4 All Consultants will be notified in writing when the City Commission makes an award. The Contract award, if any, shall be made to the Consultants whose proposal shall be deemed by the City Commission to be in the best interest of the City. The Commission's decision shall be final.
- 6.6.5 This signed proposal is considered an offer on the part of the Consultant, which offer shall be considered accepted upon approval by the City Commission of Coconut Creek. Within ten (10) days after receiving Notice of Award, the Successful Consultant shall submit a revised Certificate of Insurance naming the City of Coconut Creek as Additional Insured for all liability policies for approval by the City's Risk Manager.

#### 6.7 Work under the Contract

Awarded firms shall be placed into a pool of qualified Consultants. This term contract does not guarantee work nor does the order in which firms were ranked during the selection process dictate the assignment of City projects. Individual projects shall be assigned based on firm qualifications and what is in the best interest of the City.

#### 6.8 Term of Contract

The initial Contract period shall be for three (3) years beginning on October 13, 2016 or upon Commission award. The City reserves the right to renew the contract for two (2) additional one (1) year periods, providing both parties agree to the renewal; all the terms, conditions and specifications remain the same; and such extension is approved by the City. Successful Proposer shall give written notice to the City not less than ninety (90) days prior to renewal date of any adjustment in the initial Contract amount. Contract renewal shall be based on satisfactory performance, mutual acceptance, and determination that the Contract is in the best interest of the City.

#### 6.9 Extension Clause

In the event services are scheduled to end because of the expiration of this contract, the Consultant shall continue the service upon written request of the Purchasing Administrator. The extension period shall not extend for more than ninety (90) days beyond the expiration date of the existing contract. The Consultant shall be compensated for the service at the rate in effect when this extension clause is invoked by the City.

#### 6.10 Cost Adjustments

Costs for all services purchased under this Contract shall remain firm for the initial contract period. Costs for subsequent years and any extension term years shall be subject to an adjustment only if increases occur in the industry. However, unless very unusual and significant changes have occurred in the industry, such increases shall not exceed five percent (5%) per year or, whichever is less, the latest yearly percentage increase in the Employment Cost Index (ECI), Total Compensation, Private Industry, Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services, Not Seasonally Adjusted as published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor. The yearly increase or decrease in the ECI shall be the latest index published and available ninety (90) days prior to the end of the contract year then in effect compared to the index for the same quarter one (1) year prior. Any requested price increase shall be fully documented and submitted to the City at least ninety (90) days prior to the anniversary date of the contract. In the event the ECI or industry costs decline, the City shall have the right to receive from the Consultant a reasonable reduction in costs that reflect such cost changes in the industry.

The City may, after examination, refuse to accept the adjusted costs if they are not properly documented, increases are considered to be excessive, or any decreases are considered to be insufficient. In the event the City does not wish to accept the adjusted prices and the matter cannot be resolved to the satisfaction of the City, the contract can be cancelled by the City upon giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Consultant.

#### PART 7 – VISA CREDIT CARD – PAYMENT METHOD

7.1 The City of Coconut Creek has implemented a Visa Procurement Card (P-Card) Program through SunTrust Bank. The City's preference is to pay for goods/services with the P-Card. This program allows the City to expedite payment to our vendors. Some of the benefits of the P-Card Program to the vendor are: payment received within 72 hours of receipt and acceptance of goods, reduced paperwork, issue receipts instead of generating invoices, resulting in fewer invoice problems, and deal directly with the cardholder (in most cases).

Vendors accepting payment by the P-Card may not require the City (Cardholder) to pay a separate or additional convenience fee, surcharge or any part of any contemporaneous

finance charge in connection with a transaction. Such charges are allowable, however must be included in the total cost of their response. Vendors are not to add notations such as "+3% service fee" in their response. All responses shall be inclusive of any and all fees associated with the acceptance of the P-Card.

Vendors agreeing to accept payment by P-Card must presently have the capability to accept Visa or take whatever steps necessary to implement the ability before the start of the agreement term.

#### REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

### Purchasing Card Acceptance



### Why You Should Accept City of Coconut Creek's Purchasing Card

#### The Challenge

To optimize working capital, buying organizations are requesting that their suppliers accept purchasing cards for payment. By replacing their paper-based accounts payable process with an electronic purchasing card solution, buyers reduce their overall payables cost and suppliers reduce their collection expenses. As a supplier you will be able to accept credit card payments while minimizing your acceptance costs.

#### The Solution

We would like for you to begin accepting the SunTrust Purchasing Card. Payments made with a purchasing card provide faster receipt of funds, as they are deposited electronically to your checking account. We have partnered with SunTrust to negotiate preferred product and pricing solutions that fit the needs of Business-to-Business (B2B) purchasing card acceptance.

#### Here's How It Works

SunTrust will provide a computer-based solution that allows you to get the best effective rate for B2B card acceptance. A computer-based application is necessary to authorize and settle transactions at the best available interchange rate, as typical point-of-sale terminals do not have the capability to send the additional required enhanced data with the purchasing card transactions.

#### What's In It For You

With our B2B solution you will receive payments quicker than through the manual paper-based process. You can also:

- Achieve cost reductions in mail handling, depositing payments and collection
- · Have your funds deposited electronically
- · Receive payments faster and improved cash flow
- · Gain greater visibility to manage cash flow through online reporting
- Increase accounting efficiency
- · Receive competitive processing rates and fees
- · Eliminate returned or lost checks processing and related expenses
- · Experience reduced potential for fraud than with check payments
- Decrease days sales outstanding

#### City of Coconut Creek Preferred Supplier Acceptance Pricing

We have created a program to allow you to qualify at the best effective rates either by software or through a webbased solution.

Visa® Rate	Purchase Card Level 2	Purchase Card Level 3	Large Ticket Rate
*Interchange Rate	2.00% + \$0.05	1.80% + \$0.10	1.45% + \$35.00
*Assessment Fee	0.0925%	0.0925%	0.0925%
SunTrust Merchant Services Fee	0.20%	0.20%	0.20%
*Effective Rate	2.33%	2.13%	1.78%

\*Rate provided by Visa

#### Purchase Level 2

To qualify for the Visa Level 2 Interchange Rates, the sales tax amount must be reported and the value must be greater than zero.

#### Purchase Level 3

To qualify for the Visa Level 3 Interchange Rate, Level 3 data (item description, product code, quantity, unit of measure and commodity code) must be reported. If the Sales tax is not applied, a value of zero (0.00) is required.

#### Purchase Large Ticket

To qualify for the Visa Large Ticket Interchange Rate, Level 2 and Level 3 data must be reported. Any transaction greater than \$6,980 that has the required data elements will qualify for the Visa Large Ticket Rate.

#### City of Coconut Creek Preferred Product Solution Pricing

Туре	Solution Name	Price
Software-based Application	Payment Software	Set-up (one-time): Waived Monthly Access: \$0.00 Per Transaction:\$0.00
Internet-based Solution	Global Gateway e4	Set-up (one-time): Waived Monthly Access: \$9.95 Per Transaction:\$0.05

#### Value-Added Services

- Preferred Supplier status
- Set preferred processing fees for B2B acceptance
- No cost computer application
- No set-up fee
- No early termination fees
- Online reporting

#### Supplier Sign-Up:

To begin the supplier enrollment process, please call 855.468.0317.

#### REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

RFQ NO. 08-24-16-11

# **PART 8 - REQUIRED FORMS**

Check One

#### CONSULTANT'S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

The undersigned certifies under oath the truth and correctness of all statements and of all answers to questions made hereinafter:

SUBMITTED TO: City of Coconut Creek Purchasing Division 4800 West Copans Road Coconut Creek, FL 33063

Submitted By:	 □ Corporation
Name:	 Partnership
Address:	 Individual
City, State, Zip	 □ Other
Fax No.	

1. State the true, exact, correct and complete name of the partnership, corporation, trade or fictitious name under which you do business and the address of the place of business.

The correct name of the Consultant is:

The address of the principal place of business is:

2. If Consultant is a corporation, answer the following:

a. Date of Incorporation:

b. State of Incorporation:

- c. President's Name:\_\_\_\_\_
- d. Vice President's Name:

e. Secretary's Name:

- f. Treasurer's Name:
- g. Name and Address of Resident Agent:
- 3. If Consultant is an individual or a partnership, answer the following:
  - a. Date of Organization:
  - b. Name, Address and Ownership Units of all Partners:

c. State whether general or limited partnership:

- 4. If Consultant is other than an individual, corporation or partnership, describe the organization and give the name and address of principals:
- 5. If Consultant is operating under a fictitious name, submit evidence of compliance with the Florida Fictitious Name Statute.
- 6. How many years has your organization been in business under its present business name?\_\_\_\_
  - a. Under what other former names has your organization operated?

- 7. Indicate registration, license numbers or certificate numbers for the businesses or professions, which are the subject of this RFQ. Please attach certificate of competency and/or state registration.
- 8. Litigation/Judgments/Settlements/Debarments/Suspensions: Submit information on any pending litigation and any judgments and settlements of court cases relative to providing the statement of work listed herein that have occurred within the last three (3) years. Also indicate if your firm has been debarred or suspended from bidding or proposing on a procurement project by any government during the last five (5) years.
- 9. Have you ever failed to complete any work awarded to you? If so, state when, where and why?
- 10. State the name of the individual who will personally supervise the work:
- 11. State the name and address of the attorney, if any, for the business of the Consultant:

12. State the names and addresses of all businesses and/or individuals who own an interest of more than five percent (5%) of the Consultant's business and indicate the percentage owned of each such business and/or individual:

State t	he names, addresses and the type of business of all firms that are partially or wholly
owned	by Consultant:
Do you	have a complete set of documents, including drawings and addenda, if applicable?

15. Is your firm a certified minority business as defined by the Florida Small and Minority Business Assistance Act? If yes, please include your certification with your submittal.

	Yes		No 🗆
--	-----	--	------

The Consultant acknowledges and understands that the information contained in response to this Qualification Statement shall be relied upon by City in awarding the contract and such information is warranted by Consultant to be true. The discovery of any omission or misstatement that materially affects the Consultant's qualifications to perform under the contract shall cause the City to reject the proposal, and, if after the award, to cancel and terminate the award and /or contract.

Consultant's Signature

Date

And

#### CONSULTANT'S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of \_\_\_\_\_

County of \_\_\_\_\_

On this the \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2016, before me, the undersigned Notary Public of the State of Florida, Personally appeared

(Name(s) of individual(s) who appeared before notary)

whose name(s) is/are Subscribed to within the instrument, and he/she/they acknowledge that he/she/they executed it.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA

NOTARY PUBLIC

SEAL OF OFFICE:

(Name of Notary Public: Print, Stamp, or Type as Commissioned)

□ Personally known to me, or

□ Produced identification:

(Type of Identification Produced)

□ DID take an oath, or

□ DID NOT take an oath

#### INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE

(Page 1 of 1)

The parties agree that one percent (1%) of the total compensation paid to Consultant for the work of the contract shall constitute specific consideration to Consultant for the indemnification to be provided under the Contract. The Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the City Commission, the City of Coconut Creek, and their agents and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorney's fees arising out of or resulting from the performance of the work provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense (1) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the work itself) including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and (2) is caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the Consultant, any subconsultant, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder.

In any and all claims against the City, or any of their agents or employees by any employee of the Consultant, any subconsultant, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this Paragraph shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on this amount or type of damages compensation or benefits payable by or for the Consultant or any subconsultant under Workers' Compensation Acts, Disability Benefit Acts or other Employee Benefit Acts. Nothing in this section shall affect the immunities of the City pursuant to Chapter 768, *Florida Statutes*.

Consultant's Name	Signature	Date
State of:	_	
County of:	-	
The foregoing instrument was acknowle	edged before me this	day of
, 2016, by _		, who is (who are)
personally known to me or who has produced		as identification
and who did (did not) take an oath.		
Notary Public Signature		
Notary Name, Printed, Typed or Stamp	ped	
Commission Number:		
My Commission Expires:		

#### NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT

State	of	)		
Coun	ty of	)ss. )		
		being first duly sworn, deposes and says		
that:				
(1)	He/she is the			
		(Owner, Partner, Officer, Representative or Agent)		
	of	the Consultant that has submitted the		
	attached propos	sal;		

- (2) He/she is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached proposal and of all pertinent circumstances respecting such proposal;
- (3) Such proposal is genuine and is not a collusive or sham proposal;
- (4) Neither the said Consultant nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant, have in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other Consultant, firm, or person to submit a collusive or sham proposal in connection with the work for which the attached proposal has been submitted; or to refrain from bidding in connection with such work; or have in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion, or communication, or conference with any Consultant, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached proposal of any other Consultant, or to fix an overhead, profit, or cost elements of the proposal price or the proposal price of any other Consultant, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against (Recipient), or any person interested in the proposed work;
- (5) The price or prices quoted in the attached proposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the Consultant or any other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant.

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of:

Witness

Witness

By:\_\_\_\_\_

Printed Name

Title

#### NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of \_\_\_\_\_

County of \_\_\_\_\_

On this the \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2016, before me, the undersigned Notary Public of the State of Florida, Personally appeared

And

(Name(s) of individual(s) who appeared before notary)

whose name(s) is/are Subscribed to within the instrument, and he/she/they acknowledge that he/she/they executed it.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA

NOTARY PUBLIC

SEAL OF OFFICE:

(Name of Notary Public: Print, Stamp, or Type as Commissioned)

□ Personally known to me, or

□ Produced identification:

(Type of Identification Produced)

□ DID take an oath, or

□ DID NOT take an oath

#### DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE FORM

The undersigned vendor in accordance with *Florida Statutes*, Chapter 287, Section 287.087 hereby certifies that \_\_\_\_\_\_\_does: (Name of Business)

- 1) Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.
- 2) Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
- 3) Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under bid a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1).
- 4) In the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employees that, as a condition of working on the commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employee will abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, any violation of *Florida Statutes*, Chapter 893 or of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction.
- 5) Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee's community, by any employee who is so convicted.
- 6) Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of this section.

As the person authorized to sign the statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with the above requirements.

Consultant's Signature

Company Name

Date

#### SWORN STATEMENT ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES UNDER FLORIDA STATUTES CHAPTER 287.133(3)(a).

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

- 1. This sworn statement is submitted with RFQ No. 08-24-16-11 for Architecture, Landscape Architectural and Urban Design Services.
- 2. This sworn statement is submitted by \_\_\_\_\_\_ (name of entity submitting sworn statement) whose business address is \_\_\_\_\_\_ and (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is \_\_\_\_\_\_. (If the entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual signing this sworn statement: \_\_.)
- 3. My name is \_\_\_\_\_\_ and my (Please print name of individual signing)

relationship to the entity named above is \_\_\_\_\_

- 4. I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(g), Florida Statutes, means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or with the United States, including, but not limited to, any bid or contract for goods or services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States and involving antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.
- 5. I understand that a "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(b), Florida Statutes, means a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or without an adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- 6. I understand that an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(a), Florida Statutes, includes but is not limited to:
  - 1. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime: or
  - 2. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an affiliate. The Ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.

- 7. I understand that a "person" as defined in Section 287.133(1)(e), Florida Statutes, means any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. The term "person" includes those officers, who are active, or who have been active, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in management of an entity within the last five (5) years of this sworn statement.
- 8. Based on information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. **Please check all statements that are applicable.** 
  - □ Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity have been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.
  - □ The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of the officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989, AND (Please indicate which additional statement applies.)
  - □ There has been a proceeding concerning the conviction before a hearing officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings. The final order entered by the hearing officer did not place the person or affiliate on the convicted vendor list. (Please attach a copy of the final order.)
  - □ The person or affiliate was placed on the convicted vendor list. There has been a subsequent proceeding before a hearing officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings. The final order entered by the hearing officer determined that it was in the public interest to remove the person or affiliate from the convicted vendor list. (Please attach a copy of the final order.)
- 9. Based on information and belief, the statement that I have marked below is true in relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. **Please check if statement is applicable.** 
  - □ The person or affiliate has not been placed on the convicted vendor list. (Please describe any action taken by or pending with the Department of General Services.)
- 10. The herein sworn statement shall be subject to and incorporate all the terms and conditions contained in Section 287.133 of the Florida Statutes.
- 11. Conviction of a public entity crime shall be cause for disqualification.

Consultant's Name

Signature

Date:

#### SWORN STATEMENT ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES UNDER FLORIDA STATUTES CHAPTER 287.133(3)(a). ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of \_\_\_\_\_

County of \_\_\_\_\_

On this the \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2016, before me, the undersigned Notary Public of the State of Florida, Personally appeared

And

(Name(s) of individual(s) who appeared before notary)

whose name(s) is/are Subscribed to within the instrument, and he/she/they acknowledge that he/she/they executed it.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA

NOTARY PUBLIC

SEAL OF OFFICE:

(Name of Notary Public: Print, Stamp, or Type as Commissioned)

□ Personally known to me, or

□ Produced identification:

(Type of Identification Produced)

□ DID take an oath, or

□ DID NOT take an oath

#### EXHIBIT "A"

#### LIST OF DISCIPLINES

Company Name:\_\_\_\_\_

CHECK APPROPRIATE BOXES FOR DISCIPLINES:

Acoustical Engineering	Hydrology / Hydrographic Surveying
Americans with Disabilities (ADA)	Industrial Engineering
Aerial Photography/Photo Documentation	Industrial Hygiene
Aeronautical Engineering	Interior Design
Airport Studies	Irrigation / Drainage
Archeology	Land Surveying
Architecture	Landscape Architecture
Asbestos Survey & Removal	Mapping
Biological Engineering	Materials / Materials Handling Engineering
Computer-Aided Drafting and Design	Mechanical/Plumbing Engineering
Cartography	Municipal Solid Waste
Chemical Engineering	Oceanography
Civil Engineering	Photo Interpretation / Photogrammetry
Coastal Engineering	Planning
Communications Engineering	Reclaimed Water
Construction Cost Estimating	Remote Sensing
Construction Engineering Inspections	Research & Development
Construction / Project Management	Risk Assessment
Corrosion Engineering	Safety / Occupational Health Engineering
Cost Engineering / Estimating	Sanitary Engineering
Ecology	Scheduling
Economics	Security Specialty
Electrical / Instrumentation Engineering	Soils Engineering
Energy Management	Specification Writing
Engineering	Structural Engineering
Environmental Engineering	Surveying
Environmental Science	Technical / Analysis
Fire Protection Engineering	Telecommunications
Forensic Engineering	Toxicology
Foundation / Geotechnical Engineering	Traffic Engineering
Geodetic Surveying	Transportation Design & Studies
Geographic Information Systems	Transportation Engineering
Geological & Mining Engineering	Utilities
Hazardous Material Tanks	Value Engineering
Health Facility Planning	Wastewater Services
Heating, Ventilation & Air Conditioning	Water
Hydraulic Engineering	Water Tank Inspection / Corrosion Control

LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) Accredited

Office located in Tri-County Area (Miami-Dade, Broward, or West Palm Beach County)

OTHER DISCIPLINES: